
 

1 
 

Town of Sewall’s Point 
Executive Session 

May 11, 2010 
 

1. Call to Order - Mayor Klingensmith called the Executive Session to order at 6:15 P.M.  
Attorney Torcivia said the Executive Session was private, and immediately following the 
session will be the Public Workshop at 7:00 P.M. 

 
Minutes of Workshop 

May 11, 2010 
 

Present:   Mayor Klingensmith, Vice Mayor Thurlow-Lippisch, Cmsrs. Bausch and Busha, and Town 
Manager Kellogg, Attorney Torcivia, Chief Cerniglia and Building Official Adams 

Absent: Cmsr. Schoppe 
 
1. Call to Order - Mayor Klingensmith called the Workshop to order at 7:00 P.M. and asked if 

there were any changes to the agenda.  Cmsr. Bausch asked to move Item 3f. Discussion of New 
State Law regarding Pain Management Clinics to 3a.  Hearing no other changes, a motion was 
made by Cmsr. Bausch, seconded by Cmsr. Schoppe to approve the agenda as presented.  All in 
favor. (5-0)    
In Favor:  Bausch, Busha, Schoppe, Thurlow-Lippisch, and Klingensmith   
 Opposed:  None 

 
2. Comments from the public on topics not on the agenda - None 

 
3. Old Business:  

a. Discussion of New State Law Regarding Pain Management Clinics - Attorney Torcivia talked 
about recent legislation passed by the state regulating PMCs and suggested the Town may 
want to see what the County and City of Stuart are doing and then go forward, possibly 
looking at zoning, and said FLOC may be sending information regarding this issue.  It was 
decided to wait. 

b. Presentation of Auditor Services Bids - Cmsr. Bausch reviewed the proposals submitted 
and introduced the three firms:      

James Hartley of DiBartolomeo, McBee, Hartley & Barnes, Ft. Pierce 
Bill Benson of Keefe, McCullough & Co., LLP 

Ed Holt of Nowlen, Holt & Miner, P.A. 
 Each of the firms gave a brief presentation with Mr. Hartley noting his firm had 

previously done auditing for the Town [several years ago] and felt they had a strong 
understanding of the Town; Mr. Benson, out of Ft. Lauderdale, indicated his firm had 
worked with many local governments and felt confident it would be a “good fit.” Lastly, 
Mr. Holt said his firm had enjoyed working with the Town for the last three years and 
noted the improvement during their tenure, and was hopeful it would continue.  
Commissioners asked questions of each of the firms during their presentations.  
Afterwards, the Mayor opened the floor for discussion.  Commissioners talked about 
relationships, experience, knowledge, hours, costs, and the need for change.  Resident 
Gleichmann suggested going with the lowest bidder.  A motion was made by Cmsr. Schoppe, 
seconded by Vice Mayor Thurlow-Lippisch to accept the services of DiBartolomeo, McBee, 
Hartley & Barnes.   
In Favor:  Busha, Schoppe, Thurlow-Lippisch, and Klingensmith   
 Opposed:  Bausch 

c. Discussion of Sidewalks – Town Manager Kellogg mentioned that Tom Lucido teamed with 
Town Engineer Capra to come up with a sidewalk improvement plan and included two plans 
for the Commission to review.  Engineer Capra gave an extensive overview:  Plan A provided 
about 4’ of sod between the road and the pavers, Plan B provided 2 1/2 ‘ of pervious 
concrete between the road and the pavers.  Discussion ensued around FlexiPave and the 
perc rate, pervious concrete is porous and allows for drainage, the option of brick pavers 
with space to drain; sod/ground cover and less maintenance; curbing which might be closer 
to the roadway, use (non-use) of fertilizer four times per year; rights-of-way and safety; 
trees; and funding.  $600,000 has been secured and Mr. Capra noted that he and Town 
Manager Kellogg would be meeting with SFWMD about funding [from them].  It was also 
noted by the Mayor that before we go after grants, we need the rights-of-way.  Residents:  
Cindy Lucas commented about speed bumps and stop signs;  Carole Chontos - concerned 
about speed; Don Gleichmann – flexi pave; Ella Ford – cost and maintenance; B. J. Escue - 
does not want to spend tax dollars and would like to see this issue “disappear”; Vinnie 
Barile – cost, lower speed limit and put in speed bumps.  In conclusion, Mayor Klingensmith 
said he was interested from Town Hall to Miramar as to costs, Town Hall to High Point was 
too much, he said. 



 

2 
 

d. Discussion of A1A Landscaping Plan – Cmsr. Bausch said he and Town Manager Kellogg 
attended a meeting with representatives from FDOT that afternoon regarding the 
landscaping plan.  He went on to say the landscaping would start at the base of the Evans 
Crary Bridge and extend to the other side of the Lyons Bridge.  As concerns median #1, he 
suggested putting in some sort of pavers as he felt the Town would not want the 
responsibility of irrigating that area; striping in the bike lanes would go in north/south 
sides of road and shrink the travel lane by approximately one foot.  The landscaping 
would cost the Town between $50-60,000, said Town Manager Kellogg.  It was Cmsr. 
Busha’s feeling that the Town should pressure on them.  Conversation continued about 
the mastarms and the cost to the Town, along with the crosswalk proposal on S. Sewall’s 
Point Road on each side with stamped asphalt, etc.  At that time, Town Manager Kellogg 
suggested having a meeting with FDOT to come up with our own design/plan. 

e. Discussion of Chapter 10, Article 1, Sec. 10-2 Dog Barking – Town Manager Kellogg 
indicated he had talked with Attorney Torcivia and maybe this should be complaint-driven.  
Mayor Klingensmith stated he had trouble with this and after much discussion, it was 
determined that information should be put in the Town’s newsletter and follow through 
with letters to residents. 

f. Discussion of Appointment to the Board of Zoning & Adjustment – Two applications for the 
BZA were received, Town Manager Kellogg said, and there is only one vacancy.  Cmsr. 
Schoppe moved to have Mr. Pryce appointed on that board (Cmsr. Schoppe and Vice Mayor 
Thurlow-Lippisch indicated they had appointed another person based on date of application 
and said when the next position opens, the other candidate would be placed in that position 
and ViceMayor Thurlow-Lippisch “… wanted to keep her word.”)  Discussion followed and it 
was determined that a different philosophy existed currently in which qualifications 
should be considered before date of application was received.   It was also noted that 
there were two ‘alternates’ and the Commission asked Town Manager Kellogg if either of 
those two people were interested in moving into the open position.  He said he talked with 
Cy Kissling and he was not interested, but would contact Frank Tidikus to ask if he might 
be interested and bring back at the next meeting. 

 
4. New Business:  

a. Discussion of ordinance allowing Piggybacking on State or other governmental contracts 
– Town Manager Kellogg said there is no mechanism in place to formally piggyback on state 
and local bid prices for purchases on bid items previously bid by governmental units, i.e., 
state bid for police cruisers, stripping on S. Sewall’s Point Road.  He went on to say the 
Commission would still have budgetary control, and he would like to place on agenda for 
next meeting. 

b. Discussion of Change in Sec. 82-276 Fence Ordinance – it was decided to bring back at next 
meeting. 

 
5. Town Manager’s Comments - None 
 
6. Comments from Commissioners on topics not on the agenda 

Vice Mayor Thurlow-Lippisch: 
• Commended staff on job they did at the Garden Tea saying there were about 150 people 

were in attendance; 
• Thanked FP&L for straightening the poles on A1A; 
• As a member of the TCCLG, she was able to contact Steve Martino who is the SE 

Regional Director in Sen. George LeMieux’s office who she will give a tour of Sewall’s 
Point to and verbalize concerns the Town faces.  She also invited LTC Michael Kinard 
to meet her at Town Hall and take a tour as well.  She noted the importance of making 
this connection so in the future, Sewall’s Point will be a “face with the name.” 

Mayor Klingensmith noted that Jayne Bergstrom from SFWMD will be speaking to the 
Commission. 

Cmsr. Bausch said he is going to Washington next week to push for the River (clean up, etc.) 
Cmsr. Busha asked if we were being asked by the Economic Council to pass a Resolution 
opposing Amendment No. 4?  It was decided to give both sides 15 minutes to make a presentation. 
 

7. Adjourn:  There being no further discussion, Cmsr. Bausch made a motion to adjourn, 
seconded by Cmsr. Schoppe.  Meeting adjourned at 10:20 P.M. 

 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
Ann-Marie S. Basler  
Town Clerk 


